
 
 

Thursday, 8 March 2012 
 

A meeting of the Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board will be held on 
Thursday, 15 March 2012, commencing at 3.00 pm 

The meeting will be held in the meeting room at the rear of Sarsons Pharmacy, 1a 
Palace Avenue, Paignton, TQ3 3EF 

 
(The Board will visit the Pharmacy at 1.45 p.m. prior to the meeting for an informal 

tour.) 
 

 

Agenda 
 
1.   Apologies and Changes in Membership  
 To receive any apologies, including notifications of any changes to 

the membership of the Board. 
 

2.   Minutes (Pages 1 - 4) 
 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the 

Board held on 20 October 2011. 
 

3.   Matters Arising from the Minutes  
 To consider any matters arising from the Minutes of the meeting of 

the Board held on 20 October 2011. 
 

4.   Part 1 - Key Strategic Issues (1 hour)  
 To consider a refreshed Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 

– Debbie Stark. 
 

5.   Part 2 - Key Changes/Issues for Agreement  
 • To receive an update on the New Youth Offer – Richard 

Williams; and 
 

• To receive an update on changes to reporting – Siobhan 
Grady. 

 
6.   Part 3 - Commissioning Services and Updates 

 
 

(a)   Children's  

 • To receive the Children and Young People's Plan (CYPP) 
Priorities and Monitoring Arrangements – Richard Williams; and 
 

• To receive an update on Community Budgets – Richard 
Williams. 

 



(ii) 

(b)   Adults and Supporting People (Caroline Taylor)  

 To receive an update on the above. 
 

(c)   Clinical Commissioning Group (Sam Barrell)  

 To receive an update on the above. 
 

(d)   Public Health (Debbie Stark)  

 To receive an update on the above. 
 

(e)   Healthwatch Implementation Programme (Fran Hughes)  

 To receive an update on the above. 
 

7.   'Measure Up' 2012 - 14: Torbay's Interagency Carers Strategy (Pages 5 - 22) 
 To note the attached report which was approved by the Shadow 

Health and Wellbeing Board under the ten day rule on 6 March 
2012. 
 

8.   Date of Future Meetings  
 Future meetings of the Health and Wellbeing Board will be held at 

the Town Hall, Torquay at 3.00 p.m. and have been scheduled for: 

 

• Thursday,17 May 2012; 

• Thursday, 5 July 2012; 

• Thursday, 20 September 2012; 

• Thursday, 22 November 2012;  

• Thursday, 17 January 2013; and 

• Thursday, 21 March 2013. 

 
 
 
Members of the Partnership 
 

 

Councillor Chris Lewis Torbay Council 

Councillor Christine Scouler Torbay Council 

Councillor Mike Morey Torbay Council 

Councillor Bobbie Davies Torbay Council 

Anthony Farnsworth Torbay Care Trust 

Debbie Stark Director of Public Health 

Richard Williams Children's Trust 

Caroline Taylor Deputy Chief Executive Torbay Council 

Anne Mattock Link 

Sam Barrell Baywide GP Commissioning Consortium 

Kevin Muckian Devon Local Pharmaceutical Committee 

 
 



 
 

Min ut es  o f  t he  S h a d ow H ea l t h  a n d  W e l l be i n g  B oar d  
 

20 October 2011 
 

-: Present :- 
 

Members of the Partnership: 

Councillor Chris Lewis (Chairman)  

Councillor Christine Scouler Torbay Council 

Councillor Mike Morey Torbay Council 

Councillor Bobbie Davies Torbay Council 

Debbie Stark Director of Public Health 

Richard Williams Children's Trust 

Caroline Taylor Deputy Chief Executive Torbay Council 

Clare Tanner Torbay Council 

Anne Mattock Link 

Sam Barrell Baywide GP Commissioning Consortium 

Sue Taylor (In place of Kevin 
Muckian) 

Devon Local Parmaceutical Committee 

 
Also present: 

Teresa Buckley, Fran Mason, Liam McGrath (Community and Voluntary Action Torbay), Frank 
Prince (Torquay United Community Sports Trust), Lesley Roddick-Harrs (Baywide CCG Patient 
Involvement Group), Councillor Nicole Amil and Tracey Cabache (Torbay Council) 
 

 
12. Apologies and Changes in Membership  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Board Members:  Kevin Muckian (Devon Local 
Pharmaceutical Committee – who was represented by Sue Taylor); and Observers: 
Councillor Alison Hernandez. 
 

13. Minutes  
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board held on 21 July 
2011 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

14. Matters Arising from the Minutes  
 
Arising from Minute 8, Caroline Taylor provided an update regarding the national 
perspective of Health and Wellbeing Boards.  It was agreed that an update on the status 
and functionality of Health and Wellbeing Boards would be circulated electronically to 
members of the Board. 
 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board Thursday, 20 October 2011
 

 
15. Health & Well Being Strategy (A Framework for Design to Delivery)  

 
Debbie Stark presented the draft Health and Well Being Strategy (A Framework for 
Design to Delivery).  Members of the Board made a number of comments on the draft 
Strategy at the meeting. 
 
Richard Williams informed the Board that the Children’s Trust Commissioning Board had 
agreed to disband after a final meeting in December, as the work of the Children’s Trust 
has been incorporated within the remit of the Health and Wellbeing Board.  Members 
acknowledged the need to have a children’s specific plan in the future to report to the 
Board at a strategic level and would need to consider what other sub-plans would feed 
into the Health and Well Being Strategy. 
 
Richard Williams sought approval for the Board taking on the governance role for the new 
Community Budget Pilot.  It was suggested that a sub-group be established to work with 
Richard on the arrangements for the Community Budget Pilot.  Further consideration of 
the nature of reporting and governance would need to be done for May 2012 when the 
formal Board commences. 
 
It was suggested that the governance and membership of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board would need to be reviewed once we had agreed the Health and Well Being 
Strategy to ensure that the correct people are involved having regarding to emerging 
national legislation and guidance.   
 
Agreed: 
 
(i) the Board confirmed support for the draft priorities as set out in the submitted plan; 
 
(ii) the Board approved the draft plan as Version 1;   
 
(iii) partners to submit their comments on the plan to siobhan.grady@nhs.net within the 

next four weeks to enable the subsequent version to be completed; 
 
(iv) the Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board to be the governance body for monitoring 

the delivery of the Community Budgets Pilot and children’s outcomes; 
 
(v) when the Health and Wellbeing Board is formally established next year it will have 

a standing agenda item for children and other specific areas for further 
consideration which will be undertaken as part of the Board’s development; and 

 
(vi) Councillor Lewis and Debbie Stark will put together a sub-group to take forward the 

Community Budget Pilot. 
 

16. Torbay Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment  
 
Sue Taylor outlined the Torbay Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) as set out in 
the submitted report.  This is a statutory planning document that identifies plans for 
improving health, captures the Community Pharmacy service provision at a given point in 
time and potentially identifies ways that Community Pharmacy Services might be shaped 
to better meet the needs of the local community. 

Page 2



Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board Thursday, 20 October 2011
 

 
 
The first PNA was published on 1 February 2011 and under the new arrangements Health 
and Wellbeing Boards would be responsible for approving and reviewing PNAs. 
 
Agreed: 
 
(i) the Torbay Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment to be used to create a specific 

agenda of actions to ensure maximum contribution from community pharmacy to 
the Community Plan which will be brought back to the Board within six months; 

 
(ii) the Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board directs that the Pharmacy Plan be 

shaped to deliver agreed actions; 
 
(iii) the Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board recommends that the existing Pharmacy 

Healthy Living Advisor program be extended across the bay to maximise the use of 
the nationally funded resource, and developed in line with the national Health 
Living Pharmacy model with a stated ambition for timetable; 

 
(iv) the Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board supports the up-skilling of the pharmacy 

staff base by developing access to Cognitive Behavioural Therapy training through 
the existing community pharmacy network, subject to funding being identified or 
using existing resources; and 

 
(v) the Board requests that any decision on service funding that is likely to adversely 

impact upon the existing level of provision to be brought before the Shadow Health 
and Wellbeing Board. 

 
17. Procurement of Healthwatch  

 
Tracey Cabache provided an update in respect of the procurement of Healthwatch.  
Torbay has already initiated a mapping exercise to identify the best structure of 
engagement for influence for Healthwatch Torbay.  This piece of work has enabled 
Torbay to attain Pathfinder status for its Healthwatch and the resulting model will be 
shared nationally. 
 
Agreed: 
 
(i) the Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board supported the development and 

procurement of Healthwatch Torbay as outlined in the submitted report within the 
context of reducing resources over the comprehensive spending review period; 

 
(ii) the LINk representative on the Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board (Anne Mattock) 

to provide the formal link between the Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board and the 
Healthwatch Transition Stakeholder Group in its work over the next two months; and 

 
(iii) the resulting Healthwatch specification is shared with the Shadow Health and 

Wellbeing Board through electronic means as allowed for by its constitution under 
the ten day rule. 

 

Page 3



Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board Thursday, 20 October 2011
 

 
(Note:  Anne Mattock declared an interest in this item as a member of the LINk, which 
would be replaced by Healthwatch.) 
 

18. Date of Next Meeting  
 
The next meeting of the Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board will be held on Thursday, 
15 March 2012 at 3.00 p.m. in Paignton (venue to be confirmed) with a pre-meeting for 
Members of the Board to look at pharmacy issues at 2.00 p.m. 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 4



 
 

‘Measure Up’ 2012 – 14: Torbay’s Interagency Carers Strategy   

 

Report to the Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board Circulated Under the Ten Day 

Rule on 21 February 2012 
 

1. What are we trying to achieve for our communities? 

 
1.1 Measure Up’ provides the framework for development of Carers support in 

Torbay. ‘Measure Up’ was first published in 2000 and has provided a long term 
joint agency approach to supporting carers, and recognition of their role for care 
in the community. Previous editions of Measure Up have been endorsed by 
Torbay Strategic Partnership. This draft strategy sets out proposed priorities for 
Measure Up 2012 – 14 - in relation to its key aims, the relevant legislation and 
the requirements in the national carers strategy (2010). It is being produced at a 
time of considerable change in the landscape of health and social care, and is 
intended to maintain the innovation and effectiveness in partnership working for 
carers, for which Torbay has been recognised nationally. 

 
1.2 Measure Up will provide the basis for strategic planning and partnership working 

between statutory, voluntary and carers organisations, to develop support 
services for unpaid carers in Torbay. Delivering the outcomes that carers need, 
to support them in both their caring role and in maintaining their own health and 
well being, requires an Action Plan with clear targets, timescales and 
responsibilities.  The strategy proposes maintaining those services which have 
been shown to be effective and developing new arrangements that address 
gaps in provision. Building an evidence base for what works is an essential 
requirement, which must include value for money. 

 
1.3 The model of effective early identification and targeted support of all carers has 

been demonstrated as having significant benefits in terms of carers own health 
and well being, their ability to provide care, and in maintaining the independence 
of vulnerable people in the community. Unpaid carers are central to care in the 
community and transforming services. 

 
1.4 Involvement of carers in developing these proposals has been an on-going 

process, through service evaluation, development work, monitoring mechanisms 
and feedback. Carers will be directly involved in monitoring achievement of the 
‘Measure Up’ 2012 – 14 Action Plan, which will be subject of annual review. 

 

2. Relationship to Community Plan 
 
2.1 The ‘Measure Up’ strategy directly supports a number of the aims of Torbay’s 

Community Plan, particularly the principle of focussing on prevention and early 
intervention, recognising carers as an excluded group in terms of their own 
health and well being, and by building on the strength of families and local 
communities. Providing advice and support to all carers, including self-funders, 
and partnerships with the independent and voluntary sector are ways of 
developing ‘community capacity’. Attention to carers own health and well being 
has been shown to directly impact on the stability of care at home  

Agenda Item 7

Page 5



 
2.2 Some elements of ‘Measure Up’ focus on equity and targeting ‘hard to reach’ 

groups for specific development e.g. in mental health and substance misuse. 
Reaching ‘hidden carers,’ improves access to services and reduction in crisis 
intervention. Measure Up 2012 – 14 will also give attention to key points in the 
carers ‘pathway’ (e.g. hospital discharge), to improve carers experience and 
access to support. Specific action is proposed to work with carers in the most 
deprived wards in Torbay 

 

3. Recommendation for decision 
 
3.1 ‘Measure Up’ provides the inter-agency framework for development of services 

to support unpaid carers in Torbay and a mechanism for commissioners, staff 
and carers to monitor progress.  The ‘Measure Up 2012 – 14’, including the 
Action Plan, be endorsed by the Shadow Health and wellbeing Board with a 
view to publication in April 2012.  

 
3.2 That a review of progress against the specific targets in the ‘Measure Up’ Action 

Plan be given to the Board on an annual basis. 
 
 
Contact Officer:  James Drummond 
Representing: Lead Officer Integrated Carers Services 
Telephone no.  01803 219783 
 

Page 6



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 

F
o

re
w

o
rd
 

T
h
e
 ‘
m
o
d
e
l’ 
o
f 
c
a
re
rs
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 a
s
 a
n
 e
x
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 
‘M
e
a
s
u
re
 U
p
’,
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
ra
g
e
n
c
y
 

c
a
re
rs
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
T
o
rb
a
y
, 
is
 a
 r
o
lli
n
g
 3
 y
e
a
r 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 T
o
rb
a
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 
S
in
c
e
 2
0
0
0
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 h
a
d
 l
o
n
g
 

te
rm
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
a
re
rs
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
b
u
ild
in
g
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 w
it
h
 c
a
re
rs
, 
c
a
re
rs
 g
ro
u
p
s
, 
th
e
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
a
n
d
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
. 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 U
p
 i
s
 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 a
n
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 b
a
s
e
 o
f 
w
h
a
t 
w
o
rk
s
. 
T
o
rb
a
y
 i
s
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 c
it
e
d
 i
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

re
p
o
rt
s
 f
o
r 
it
s
 ‘
in
te
g
ra
te
d
’ 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 c
a
re
rs
. 

L
o
c
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 a
re
 m
a
k
in
g
 a
 r
e
a
l 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
c
a
re
rs
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 w
e
 w
ill
 l
o
o
k
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 u
p
 a
n
y
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
o
n
 

g
o
a
l 
o
f 
v
a
lu
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 u
n
p
a
id
 c
a
re
rs
 m
a
k
e
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
re
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
. 
A
t 
th
is
 t
im
e
 o
f 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
a
y
 t
h
a
t 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
, 
it
 i
s
 e
v
e
n
 m
o
re
 c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
th
a
t 
w
e
 s
u
s
ta
in
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m
a
d
e
. 

T
C
T
 

 
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

 
 

 
 

 In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 

W
h

o
 i
s
 a

 C
a
re

r?
 A
 C
a
re
r 
is
 s
o
m
e
o
n
e
 w
h
o
 h
a
s
 c
a
ri
n
g
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
a
 s
p
o
u
s
e
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
 f
ri
e
n
d
 o
r 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
r,
 w
h
o
 d
u
e
 t
o
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
, 
fr
a
ilt
y
, 
ill
n
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
/o
r 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
ili
ty
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
 a
lo
n
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
C
a
re
rs
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
f 
a
n
y
 a
g
e
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
p
a
y
. 
(M
e
a
s
u
re
 U
p
 2
0
0
0
).
 

T
h
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 4

th
 e
d
it
io
n
 o
f 
M
e
a
s
u
re
 U
p
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 2
0
1
2
 -
 1
4
  
 

T
h

e
 ‘
M

e
a
s
u

re
 U

p
’ 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 c
a
re

r 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 c
o

m
b

in
e
s
: 

•
 
D
ir
e
c
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 a
 u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
o
ff
e
r 
o
f 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 e
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 a
ll 
c
a
re
rs
 

•
 
P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n
 i
n
 c
a
re
rs
 m
e
n
ta
l 
a
n
d
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

•
 
T
a
rg
e
ti
n
g
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
f 
c
a
re
rs
 -
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 a
re
 h
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 o
r 
e
x
c
lu
d
e
d
 

•
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
fl
e
x
ib
le
 b
re
a
k
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 “
e
n
a
b
lin
g
” 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
a
re
rs
  

  
  
 w
o
rk
 o
u
t 
w
h
a
t 
w
ill
 h
e
lp
 t
h
e
m
  

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1

Page 7



T
h
e
 k
e
y
 a
im
s
 o
f 
M
e
a
s
u
re
 U
p
 w
e
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 2
0
0
0
 a
n
d
 s
ti
ll 
re
m
a
in
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
to
d
a
y
: 

•
 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 -
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
d
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
e
n
a
b
le
 C
a
re
rs
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
y
 n
e
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 r
ig
h
t 
ti
m
e
 

•
 
S
h
o
rt
 B
re
a
k
s
 -
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
b
re
a
k
s
 f
o
r 
C
a
re
rs
, 
s
u
it
a
b
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 w
h
e
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

•
 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 -
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
’ 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 C
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 n
e
w
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
a
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
 m
o
re
 C
a
re
rs
 

in
 t
h
e
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
, 
re
v
ie
w
, 
a
n
d
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
- 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
 p
la
n
s
 a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 C
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 o
w
n
 n
e
e
d
s
 

•
 
E
q
u
it
y
 -
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
a
ll 
g
ro
u
p
s
 o
f 
C
a
re
rs
, 
a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 e
q
u
a
l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 
T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 c
le
a
r 

p
o
in
t 
o
f 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
fo
r 
a
ll 
C
a
re
rs
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
- 
to
 r
a
is
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
fi
le
, 
a
m
o
n
g
s
t 
C
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
, 
o
f 
th
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
C
a
re
rs
, 
a
n
d
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 

m
a
in
ta
in
 C
a
re
rs
 i
n
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
/o
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
. 

 W
h
a
t 
h
a
s
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
re
 t
h
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
, 
b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 c
a
re
rs
, 
s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t.
 

H
o

w
 d

o
e
s
 t

h
e
 T

o
rb

a
y
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 f
it

 w
it

h
 t

h
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t’
s
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
C

a
re

rs
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
?

 

In
 R
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
, 
V
a
lu
e
d
 a
n
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
: 
N
e
x
t 
s
te
p
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
a
re
rs
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
’ 
(2
0
1
0
),
 t
h
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
u
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
it
s
 c
a
re
rs
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
  
 

•
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 a
s
 c
a
re
rs
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 s
ta
g
e
, 
re
c
o
g
n
is
in
g
 t
h
e
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 o
u
ts
e
t,
 b
o
th
 i
n
 d
e
s
ig
n
in
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
a
re
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 i
n
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
. 

•
 
e
n
a
b
lin
g
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 t
o
 f
u
lf
il 
th
e
ir
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l;
 

•
 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 b
o
th
 f
o
r 
c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 f
a
m
ily
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 l
if
e
; 

•
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 c
a
re
rs
 t
o
 r
e
m
a
in
 m
e
n
ta
lly
 a
n
d
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
lly
 w
e
ll.
  

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
M
e
a
s
u
re
 U
p
 2
0
1
2
 –
 1
4
 f
u
lf
ils
 t
h
e
s
e
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
. 

J
o

in
t 

W
o

rk
in

g
 –

 T
h

e
 N

H
S

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
  

Page 8



T
h
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 U
p
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 a
im
s
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
’s
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
la
n
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 t
h
e
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
 o
f 
fo
c
u
s
s
in
g
 o
n
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
re
c
o
g
n
is
in
g
 c
a
re
rs
 a
s
 a
n
 e
x
c
lu
d
e
d
 g
ro
u
p
 i
n
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 o
w
n
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll 
b
e
in
g
, 
a
n
d
 b
y
 b
u
ild
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
n
g
th
 o
f 

fa
m
ili
e
s
 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 
J
o
in
t 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 w
o
rk
in
g
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
to
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
M
e
a
s
u
re
 U
p
 2
0
1
2
 –
 1
4
. 

T
h
e
 N
H
S
 O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
2
 -
1
3
 s
e
ts
 o
u
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 c
a
re
rs
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 a
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 g
ro
u
p
 

“C
a
re
rs
 p
la
y
 a
 v
it
a
l 
ro
le
 i
n
 o
u
r 
s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 m
u
s
t 
re
c
e
iv
e
 h
e
lp
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 l
o
c
a
l 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
F
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
 j
o
in
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
, 

w
h
ic
h
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 w
it
h
 p
la
n
s
, 
P
C
T
 c
lu
s
te
rs
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 a
g
re
e
 p
o
lic
ie
s
, 
p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

c
a
re
rs
, 
w
h
e
re
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 u
s
in
g
 d
ir
e
c
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 o
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
. 
F
o
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 t
h
is
 m
e
a
n
s
 p
la
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
a
re
rs
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
.b
e
 

p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 P
C
T
 o
r 
P
C
T
 c
lu
s
te
r’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 b
y
 3
0
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 a
t 
th
e
 l
a
te
s
t”
. 
 

A
 j
o
in
t 
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 T
ru
s
t 
B
o
a
rd
 i
n
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
1
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
ri
s
k
s
 f
o
r 
Y
o
u
n
g
 C
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 A
d
u
lt
 C
a
re
rs
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
o
r 

a
c
a
d
e
m
ic
 a
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
lif
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
a
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 T
o
rb
a
y
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 C
a
re
rs
’ 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 w
h
ic
h
 f
o
rm
a
lly
 e
n
c
o
m
p
a
s
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 M
e
m
o
ra
n
d
u
m
 o
f 
U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
Y
o
u
n
g
 C
a
re
rs
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 

jo
in
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
, 
a
 w
h
o
le
 f
a
m
ily
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 f
ro
m
 C
h
ild
re
n
 t
o
 A
d
u
lt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
It
 i
s
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
2
. 

E
v
id

e
n

c
e
 f

o
r 

w
h

a
t 

w
o

rk
s
 –

 T
o

rb
a
y
’s

 D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t 
o

f 
H

e
a
lt

h
 f

u
n

d
e
d

 C
a
re

rs
 B

re
a
k
s
 D

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
to

r 
S

it
e
 2

0
0
9
 -

 1
1
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 h
a
s
 a
lw
a
y
s
 b
e
e
n
 l
o
o
k
in
g
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 c
a
re
rs
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 s
h
o
w
 w
h
a
t 
w
o
rk
s
. 
F
ro
m
 2
0
0
9
 –
 1
1
 T
o
rb
a
y
 w
a
s
 a
 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
H
e
a
lt
h
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 D
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
to
r 
S
it
e
 f
o
r 
C
a
re
rs
 B
re
a
k
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
is
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 f
e
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 

p
la
n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
is
 e
d
it
io
n
 o
f 
M
e
a
s
u
re
 U
p
’.
 T
h
e
 a
im
 o
f 
th
is
 D
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
to
r 
S
it
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
a
s
 a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 m
o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
re
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 w
h
a
t 
a
 b

re
a
k
 r
e
a
lly
 m
e
a
n
s
 f
o
r 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 ‘
fa
m
ili
e
s
’ 
a
n
d
 h
e
lp
s
 

th
e
m
 g
e
t 
th
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 n
e
e
d
. 
  

 T
o
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 h
o
w
 a
n
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 a
n
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 b
re
a
k
s
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
w
it
h
 a
n
 e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 o
n
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
c
a
n
 h
a
v
e
 a
 b
e
tt
e
r 

im
p
a
c
t 
th
a
n
 t
ra
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 o
n
 c
a
re
rs
 o
w
n
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll 
b
e
in
g
 -
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
ri
n
g
 r
o
le
. 
  

E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 s
tr
o
n
g
ly
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 T
o
rb
a
y
’s
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 o
f 
p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
e
n
a
b
lin
g
 a
n
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 
A
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
s
tu
d
y
 o
f 
th
e
 d
a
ta
 

b
y
 M
a
n
c
h
e
s
te
r 
U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 P
S
S
R
U
, 
u
s
in
g
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
, 
c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
“t
h
e
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
o
v
e
ra
ll 
e
ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

c
a
re
rs
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
..
..
. 
C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 w
e
llb
e
in
g
 a
p
p
e
a
re
d
 t
o
 s
h
o
w
 t
h
a
t 
it
 w
a
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
a
re
rs
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 l
a
rg
e
ly
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 

n
o
t 
th
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
s
, 
p
e
rc
e
iv
e
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 o
r 
s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
c
a
re
rs
. 
V
ie
w
s
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
e
re
 o
v
e
rw
h
e
lm
in
g
ly
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 w
it
h
 m
o
s
t 
c
a
re
rs
 

s
a
y
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 (
D
r 
P
a
u
l 
C
la
rk
s
o
n
 P
S
S
R
U
 U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 o
f 
M
a
n
c
h
e
s
te
r 
J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
1
).
 O
f 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
c
e
 w
a
s
 a
n
 

Page 9



a
n
a
ly
s
is
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 G
e
n
e
ra
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 1
2
 w
h
ic
h
 s
h
o
w
e
d
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
lia
b
le
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
re
a
s
 -
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
s
, 
a
 s
e
n
s
e
 o
f 
o
v
e
rc
o
m
in
g
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
, 
e
n
jo
y
in
g
 d
a
ily
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
, 
fa
c
in
g
 u
p
 t
o
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 a
n
d
 f
e
e
lin
g
 u
n
h
a
p
p
y
 o
r 
d
e
p
re
s
s
e
d
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
w
h
e
n
 w
e
 a
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
e
n
a
b
lin
g
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
b
ro
k
e
ra
g
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 C
ro
s
s
ro
a
d
s
 C
a
re
. 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
re
 k
e
y
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 T
h
e
 k
e
y
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
fu
tu
re
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
re
: 

•
 
P
ro
v
id
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
e
n
a
b
lin
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 a
ll 
c
a
re
rs
. 
L
o
w
 l
e
v
e
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
a
s
 s
h
o
w
n
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 k
e
y
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
m
o
s
t 

c
a
re
rs
 a
re
 e
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 a
n
d
 s
ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
. 

•
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 c
a
n
 c
o
n
n
e
c
t 
b
e
tt
e
r 
w
it
h
 m
a
n
y
 c
a
re
rs
, 
c
a
n
 a
c
t 
a
s
 a
 b
ri
d
g
e
 t
o
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
a
n
d
 o
ff
e
r 
v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
  

•
 
F
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 p
e
e
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 s
e
lf
 h
e
lp
. 
C
a
re
rs
 a
s
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 (
c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 f
o
rm
e
r 
c
a
re
rs
) 
a
re
 a
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 

 

 

C
a
re

r 
In

v
o

lv
e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

la
n

 

W
e
 a
re
 b
u
ild
in
g
 n
e
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
t 
lo
w
 c
o
s
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 d
ir
e
c
t 
c
a
re
r 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 ‘
p
ig
g
y
 b
a
c
k
in
g
’ 
o
n
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 (
e
.g
. 
th
e
 C
a
re
rs
 D
is
c
o
u
n
t 

S
c
h
e
m
e
, 
S
a
fe
ly
 H
o
m
e
 S
c
h
e
m
e
).
 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 r
e
c
o
g
n
it
io
n
 o
f 
a
n
 e
x
p
o
n
e
n
ti
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
p
u
t 
fr
o
m
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 (
c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 f
o
rm
e
r 
c
a
re
rs
) 
in
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
C
a
re
rs
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
e
.g
. 
C
a
re
rs
 4
 C
a
re
rs
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 b
e
fr
ie
n
d
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
a
re
rs
 F
o
ru
m
, 
C
a
re
rs
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 g
ro
u
p
s
, 
C
a
re
rs
 

R
e
g
is
te
r 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
G
ro
u
p
, 
p
u
b
lic
it
y
 c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
s
, 
 S
tu
ff
e
rs
 C
lu
b
, 
B
ri
x
h
a
m
 C
a
re
rs
 C
e
n
tr
e
) 
a
n
d
 i
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 s
e
lf
 h
e
lp
 n
e
tw
o
rk
s
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
p
u
t 
fr
o
m
 

c
a
re
rs
 i
s
 a
 d
ir
e
c
t 
re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 a
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 C
a
re
rs
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

V
o
lu
n
te
e
r 
in
p
u
t 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
s
a
v
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
t 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
v
e
a
lin
g
 t
o
 q
u
a
n
ti
fy
 t
h
is
. 
It
 i
s
 a
 r
e
tu
rn
 o
n
 o
u
r 
p
a
s
t 
in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 ‘
M
e
a
s
u
re
 U
p
’,
 

b
u
t 
a
ls
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
fu
tu
re
 s
a
v
in
g
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
a
re
rs
 i
n
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
s
ig
n
in
g
 n
e
w
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 v
e
ry
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 a
n
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 

e
le
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
. 
 

    

Page 10



  R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

a
re

rs
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 2

0
0
8
 –

 1
1
 a

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

w
h

a
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 d
e
li
v
e
re

d
 

T
h
e
re
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 f
ro
m
 g
o
o
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
fi
le
 o
f 

c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
 h
a
s
 g
ro
w
n
 a
t 
b
o
th
 a
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
le
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 T
o
rb
a
y
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
b
le
 t
o
 t
e
s
t 
o
u
t 
n
e
w
 w
a
y
s
 o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
 g
e
t 
g
o
o
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

fo
r 
c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
. 
T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a
 b
ri
e
f 
s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
s
o
m
e
 o
f 
w
h
a
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

D
ir

e
c
t 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

o
u

r 
u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
o

ff
e
r 

fo
r 

a
ll
 c

a
re

rs
) 

•
 
C
a
re
rs
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 W
o
rk
e
rs
 i
n
 G
P
 s
u
rg
e
ri
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
a
re
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 o
n
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 R
e
g
is
te
rs
. 
A
 t
a
rg
e
t 
fo
r 

th
is
, 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
(A
S
A
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 

•
 
E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
S
ig
n
p
o
s
ts
 f
o
r 
C
a
re
rs
, 
th
e
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
is
 n
o
w
 d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 a
n
 

a
v
e
ra
g
e
 o
f 
3
0
0
 n
e
w
 e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 p
e
r 
m
o
n
th
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 s
ta
rt
e
d
 w
e
e
k
ly
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 a
t 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 H
o
s
p
it
a
ls
 a
n
d
 B
ri
x
h
a
m
 C
a
re
rs
 C
e
n
tr
e
. 

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
d
v
ic
e
 t
o
 c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
p
le
x
 c
a
s
e
s
 i
s
 a
n
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
ro
le
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
. 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
a
re
rs
 R
e
g
is
te
r.
 I
n
 t
h
e
 5
 y
e
a
rs
 u
p
 t
o
 2
0
1
0
, 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f 
th
e
 R
e
g
is
te
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 b
y
 1
0
%
 p
e
r 
y
e
a
r 
b
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
it
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 b
y
 1
9
%
, 
la
rg
e
ly
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
c
a
re
r 
le
d
 p
u
b
lic
it
y
 c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
s
. 
A
 T
o
rb
a
y
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
S
a
in
s
b
u
ry
s
 s
u
p
e
rm
a
rk
e
ts
, 
to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 

c
a
re
rs
, 
h
a
s
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
. 
T
h
e
 C
a
re
rs
 R
e
g
is
te
r 
g
iv
e
s
 d
ir
e
c
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a
 w
id
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
a
re
rs
 e
.g
. 

C
a
re
rs
 D
is
c
o
u
n
t 
s
c
h
e
m
e
, 
q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 c
a
re
rs
 n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
r,
 C
a
re
rs
 E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 C
a
rd
, 
S
a
fe
ly
 H
o
m
e
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 

•
 
T
h
e
 S
a
fe
ly
 H
o
m
e
 S
c
h
e
m
e
. 
T
h
is
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 w
a
s
 o
ri
g
in
a
lly
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
 2
0
0
6
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 f
o
u
n
d
 w
a
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

in
 a
 p
u
b
lic
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d
 h
o
m
e
. 
In
 2
0
1
1
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 w
a
s
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 g
ro
u
p
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
, 

A
c
q
u
ir
e
d
 B
ra
in
 I
n
ju
ry
, 
a
n
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
fl

e
x
ib

le
 b

re
a
k
s
 a

n
d

 “
e
n

a
b

li
n

g
”
  

•
 
C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 b
u
ild
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r.
 A
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 C
ro
s
s
ro
a
d
s
 C
a
re
 S
W
 h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
e
n
a
b
lin
g
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
p
e
n
 t
o
 a
ll 
c
a
re
rs
. 
T
h
is
 w
o
rk
s
 w
it
h
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 t
o
 f
in
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 t
o
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 ‘
W
h
a
t 
d
o
e
s
 a
 b
re
a
k
 

m
e
a
n
 t
o
 y
o
u
?
’.
 I
t 
m
o
b
ili
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 i
s
 c
re
a
ti
n
g
 s
e
lf
 h
e
lp
 n
e
tw
o
rk
s
 o
f 
c
a
re
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 
In
 2
0
1
1
 C
ro
s
s
ro
a
d
s
 C
a
re
 

Page 11



S
W
 t
o
o
k
 o
n
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
d
 i
n
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
r 
c
o
o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
c
re
a
ti
n
g
 a
 p
o
o
l 
o
f 
c
a
re
rs
, 
fo
rm
e
r 
c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
rs
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
ri
n
g
 f
o
r 
c
a
re
rs
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 B
a
y
. 

•
 
N
e
w
 ‘
to
o
ls
’ 
fo
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 S
e
lf
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
h
a
v
e
 g
iv
e
n
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 g
re
a
te
r 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 
in
 c
a
re
 p
la
n
n
in
g
. 
T
h
e
 M
e
 a
n
d
 M
y
 L
if
e
 b
o
o
k
 (
h
a
rd
 c
o
p
y
 a
n
d
 

d
ig
it
a
l 
v
e
rs
io
n
) 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 b
y
 M
e
n
c
a
p
’s
 O
ld
e
r 
F
a
m
ily
 C
a
re
rs
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
, 
e
n
a
b
le
s
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 t
o
 p
la
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 a
n
d
 i
s
 a
 u
s
e
r 
fr
ie
n
d
ly
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 

fo
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
. 
W
e
 b
e
lie
v
e
 i
t 
h
a
s
 t
h
e
 s
c
o
p
e
 t
o
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
c
lie
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
. 
A
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 s
e
lf
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
te
m
p
la
te
 f
o
r 
C
a
re
rs
 ‘
D
o
 

y
o
u
 l
o
o
k
 a
ft
e
r 
s
o
m
e
o
n
e
?
’ 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 c
a
re
rs
. 

•
 
C
a
re
rs
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
s
 “
c
a
ta
ly
s
ts
” 
fo
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
 E
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
v
e
ry
 l
o
c
a
l 
w
a
lk
 i
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
a
re
rs
 t
o
 g
e
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
‘h
id
d
e
n
 c
a
re
rs
’.
 T
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 U
p
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
im
e
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 c
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 e
a
c
h
 t
o
w
n
. 
T
h
e
 O
liv
e
 C
a
re
rs
 C
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 T
o
rq
u
a
y
 

w
a
s
 o
p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 B
ri
x
h
a
m
 C
a
re
rs
 C
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
0
 

 
C

a
re

r 
in

v
o

lv
e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
  

 

•
 
W
e
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
b
le
 t
o
 b
u
ild
 n
e
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
t 
lo
w
 c
o
s
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 c
a
re
r 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t.
 O
ft
e
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b
y
 c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 i
n
s
tr
u
m
e
n
ta
l 
in
 t
h
e
ir
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
e
.g
. 
C
a
re
rs
 D
is
c
o
u
n
t 
S
c
h
e
m
e
, 
S
a
fe
ly
 H
o
m
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
, 
D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 C
a
re
rs
 P
a
th
w
a
y
s
 b
o
o
k
. 

•
 
T
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 o
f 
v
o
lu
n
te
e
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 n
e
tw
o
rk
s
 o
f 
s
e
lf
-h
e
lp
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 
T
h
e
 C
a
re
rs
 4
 C
a
re
rs
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 b
e
fr
ie
n
d
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
is
o
la
te
d
 c
a
re
rs
 w
h
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr
o
m
 a
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
p
h
o
n
e
 c
a
ll;
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
a
re
rs
 F
o
ru
m
 i
s
 a
 n
e
w
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 r
u
n
 b
y
 c
a
re
rs
 f
o
r 
c
a
re
rs
 t
o
 g
iv
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
; 
T
h
e
 ‘
If
 Y
O
U
 w
e
re
n
’t
 t
h
e
re
 w
h
o
 w
o
u
ld
 c
a
re
?
’ 
c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 h
id
d
e
n
 c
a
re
rs
, 
th
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 d
id
 

n
o
t 
re
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 a
s
 c
a
re
rs
; 
th
e
 S
tu
ff
e
rs
 C
lu
b
 i
s
 a
 s
o
c
ia
l 
g
ro
u
p
 w
h
o
 a
ls
o
 s
tu
ff
 e
n
v
e
lo
p
e
s
 w
it
h
 o
u
r 
q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 c
a
re
rs
 n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
r 
(3
0
0
0
 

c
o
p
ie
s
 p
e
r 
e
d
it
io
n
);
 Y
o
u
n
g
 A
d
u
lt
 C
a
re
rs
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 f
u
n
d
ra
is
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 m
a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 

th
a
t 
s
u
s
ta
in
 a
 n
e
tw
o
rk
 o
f 
s
e
lf
 h
e
lp
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t.
  

•
 
T
h
e
 d
ir
e
c
t 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
a
re
rs
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
f 
C
a
re
rs
 a
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 E
v
a
lu
a
to
rs
. 

In
it
ia
lly
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 D
H
 D
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
to
r 
S
it
e
 t
h
e
s
e
 c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 f
o
rm
e
r 
c
a
re
rs
 a
re
 p
a
id
 a
s
 s
e
s
s
io
n
a
l 
b
a
n
k
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
n
d
 a
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

to
 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
 t
o
 a
s
s
is
t 
in
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
in
g
 c
a
re
rs
 f
o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
. 

P
re

v
e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
b

re
a
k
d

o
w

n
 i
n

 c
a
re

rs
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
n

d
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 

•
 
Id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 c
a
re
rs
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll 
b
e
in
g
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 v
ia
 G
P
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 T
h
is
 m
o
d
e
l 
o
f 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 f
ro
m
 G
P
 s
u
rg
e
ri
e
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
h
o
w
n
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
h
id
d
e
n
 c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 u
n
tr
e
a
te
d
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 f
o
r 
a
n
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 C
a
re
rs
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

•
 
Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 c
a
re
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 p
la
n
s
. 
A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
c
a
re
rs
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
, 
a
 p
ilo
t 
p
ro
je
c
t,
 b
a
s
in
g
 a
 C
a
re
rs
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 W
o
rk
e
r 
in
 t
h
e
 

d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 t
e
a
m
 a
t 
T
o
rb
a
y
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l,
 w
a
s
 s
ta
rt
e
d
 i
n
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
0
 a
n
d
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
. 
S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 T
ru
s
t 
h
a
v
e
 

re
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 c
a
re
rs
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir
 ‘
jo
u
rn
e
y
’ 
a
t 
th
e
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

Page 12



•
 
N
H
S
 C
a
re
rs
 H
e
a
lt
h
 T
ra
in
e
rs
. 
T
h
is
 p
o
s
t 
(a
 j
o
b
 s
h
a
re
) 
fo
llo
w
e
d
 t
h
e
 N
H
S
 T
ra
in
e
r 
m
o
d
e
l 
o
f 
re
c
ru
it
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
ir
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 

o
n
 a
 r
o
le
 a
s
 c
h
a
m
p
io
n
s
 f
o
r 
a
 s
e
lf
 c
a
re
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
, 
w
it
h
 p
a
id
 H
e
a
lt
h
 T
ra
in
e
rs
 a
c
ti
n
g
 a
s
 a
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 n
e
w
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
. 
H
e
a
lt
h
 T
ra
in
e
rs
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

u
n
p
a
id
 c
a
re
rs
 i
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 h
e
a
lt
h
. 
T
h
e
 r
o
le
 i
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
, 
In
 t
h
e
 p
a
s
t 
1
8
 m
o
n
th
s
, 

7
8
%

 o
f 

th
e

 g
o

a
ls

 s
e
t 

b
y
 c

a
re

rs
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

a
 H

e
a
lt
h
 T

ra
in

e
r,
 

•
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
lli
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
C
a
re
rs
. 
T
h
e
 C
a
re
rs
 E
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 b
ri
e
f 
c
o
u
n
s
e
lli
n
g
 a
n
d
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 C
O
R
E
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 t
o
o
l 
th
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 q
u
a
rt
ile
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
 f
o
r 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 h
e
a
lt
h
 c
o
u
n
s
e
lli
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 

 T
a
rg

e
ti

n
g

 s
p

e
c
if

ic
 g

ro
u

p
s
 

•
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 A
d
u
lt
 C
a
re
rs
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 -
 1
6
-2
5
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 (
n
e
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
in
c
e
 l
a
te
 2
0
0
9
) 
T
h
is
 m
u
lt
ia
g
e
n
c
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 

th
is
 g
ro
u
p
 o
f 
c
a
re
rs
 o
f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 j
o
in
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
. 
L
in
k
s
 w
it
h
 S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 C
o
lle
g
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 n
e
w
 i
n
 C
o
lle
g
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
Y
A
C
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 w
w
w
.t
o
rb
a
y
y
a
c
.c
o
.u
k
) 

•
 
O
ld
e
r 
fa
m
ily
 C
a
re
rs
 (
7
0
+
 y
e
a
rs
 o
ld
) 
o
f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
. 
M
e
n
c
a
p
’s
 O
ld
e
r 
F
a
m
ily
 C
a
re
rs
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 1
1
2
 

fa
m
ili
e
s
. 
T
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
e
s
te
d
 a
 n
e
w
 v
e
rs
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 ‘
M
e
 a
n
d
 M
y
’ 
L
if
e
 b
o
o
k
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 o
f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 w
it
h
 a
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 

p
la
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
. 
T
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
n
 i
n
te
ra
c
ti
v
e
 d
ig
it
a
l 
v
e
rs
io
n
.
 

•
 
C
a
re
rs
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
. 
W
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 G
P
 s
u
rg
e
ri
e
s
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 h
o
m
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 H
e
a
lt
h
 C
h
e
c
k
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 m
e
m
o
ry
 

p
ro
b
le
m
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
re
rs
. 
T
h
e
 a
im
s
 a
re
 e
a
rl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
c
a
re
rs
 o
f 
d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
. 
T
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 N
u
rs
e
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
rs
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 W
o
rk
e
r 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
n
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
c
a
re
rs
. 

•
 
M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m
is
u
s
e
. 
F
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
it
h
 c
a
re
rs
, 
u
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
 a
 n
e
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 o
f 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m
is
u
s
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
C
a
re
rs
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 W
o
rk
e
r.
 T
h
is
 i
s
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
jo
in
t 

w
o
rk
in
g
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 C
O
O
L
 R
e
c
o
v
e
ry
, 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
a
ri
ty
, 
a
n
d
 w
ill
 c
o
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
ir
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
o
rk
 

w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
. 

 

A
re

a
s
 w

h
e
re

 w
e
 h

a
v
e
n

’t
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d

e
d

 i
n

 m
a
k
in

g
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

 

•
 
C
a
re
rs
 f
ro
m
 b
la
c
k
 a
n
d
 m
in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 
W
e
 c
a
n
 l
e
a
rn
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
S
o
u
th
 W
e
s
t 
lo
c
a
lit
ie
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 D
e
v
o
n
 w
h
o
 

h
a
v
e
 h
a
d
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
B
M
E
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

•
 
P
a
ig
n
to
n
 C
a
re
rs
 C
e
n
tr
e
. 
W
e
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 a
n
d
 a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 v
e
n
u
e
 f
o
r 
a
 c
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 P
a
ig
n
to
n
. 
L
e
a
rn
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 T
o
rq
u
a
y
 a
n
d
 B
ri
x
h
a
m
 h
a
s
 s
h
o
w
n
 u
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 a
 c
e
n
tr
e
 v
ia
b
le
. 

Page 13



 

 M
e
a
s
u

re
 U

p
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
2
 –

 1
4
 

T
h
e
 6
 k
e
y
 a
im
s
 o
f 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
e
d
it
io
n
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 U
p
 2
0
0
0
 r
e
m
a
in
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
b
u
t 
th
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 a
s
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 ‘
m
o
d
e
l’ 
h
a
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
ti
m
e
. 
T
h
e
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 e
n
a
b
le
s
 u
s
 t
o
 s
h
o
w
 w
h
a
t 
is
 g
o
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
 d
o
n
e
, 
h
o
w
 i
t 
w
ill
 h
a
p
p
e
n
, 
w
h
o
 i
s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 

th
e
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
 f
o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
. 
It
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 w
ill
 e
n
a
b
le
 c
a
re
rs
, 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
, 
s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 s
e
e
 c
le
a
rl
y
 w
h
a
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
e
t 
a
n
d
 c
h
e
c
k
 w
h
a
t 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m
a
d
e
. 
T
h
e
 p
la
n
 f
o
c
u
s
e
s
 o
n
 m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
re
rs
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
ld
 u
s
 g
iv
e
 t
h
e
m
 w
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 n
e
e
d
, 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 n
e
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 g
iv
e
 c
a
re
rs
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
, 
b
o
th
 i
n
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
ri
n
g
 r
o
le
 a
n
d
 i
n
 m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll 
b
e
in
g
. 
 

T
h
e
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
th
is
 e
d
it
io
n
 f
o
c
u
s
e
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
: 
 

Id
e

n
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

a
re

rs
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

d
v

ic
e

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 t
o

 a
ll

 C
a

re
rs

 

In
v

o
lv

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

a
re

rs
 i

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

, 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 

A
v

a
il

a
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
‘h

o
li

st
ic

’ 
C

a
re

rs
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

p
a

ck
a

g
e

s 
o

f 
su

p
p

o
rt

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
 ‘

w
h

o
le

 f
a

m
il

y
’ 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 C
a

re
rs

 

T
h
e
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
is
io
n
 w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 
It
 i
s
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
v
ie
w
 w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

d
e
ta
il 
o
f 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 a
n
d
 d
a
ta
 t
o
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

   

Page 14



   

M
e

a
su

re
 U

p
 A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 2
0

1
2

 –
 2

0
1

4
 

 

Id
e

n
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

a
re

rs
 

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

T
a

rg
e

t/
S

e
rv

ic
e

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 
T

im
e

sc
a

le
 

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 

E
a

rl
y 

id
e

n
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

a
re

rs
 o

f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 D
e

m
e

n
ti

a
/m

e
m

o
ry

 

p
ro

b
le

m
s 

2
5

%
 i

n
cr

e
a

se
 i

n
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
ca

re
rs

 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 p

e
r 

p
ra

ct
ic

e
.(

b
a

se
li

n
e

 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

1
1

) 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 E
a

rl
y 

Id
e

n
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

ct
 i
n

 7
 

G
P

 P
ra

ct
ic

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 e

va
lu

a
te

 

im
p

a
ct

. 
P

u
b

li
sh

 r
e

p
o

rt
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 

  O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 

7
 G

P
 P

ra
ct

ic
e

s/
 T

C
T

 C
a

re
rs

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

T
e

a
m

 

P
u

b
li

ci
ty

 a
n

d
 P

ro
m

o
ti

o
n

 t
o

 

id
e

n
ti

fy
 C

a
re

rs
 

  

A
ch

ie
ve

 t
h

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 A
S
A

 t
a

rg
e

t 
to

 

in
cr

e
a

se
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
C

a
re

rs
 o

n
 G

P
 

R
e

g
is

te
rs

 

M
in

im
u

m
 o

f 
2

 p
u

b
li

ci
ty

 c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
s 

p
e

r 

a
n

n
u

m
 i

n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 l
o

ca
l 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

 a
n

d
 c

a
re

rs
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 

  B
y 

3
1

/3
 e

a
ch

 y
e

a
r 

G
P

s/
 C

a
re

rs
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s 

  T
C

T
 C

a
re

rs
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
T

e
a

m
 

Page 15



(e
.g

. 
S

a
in

sb
u

ry
s)

 
 

A
d

u
lt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

T
e

a
m

s 
to

 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

ly
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 y
o

u
n

g
 c

a
re

rs
 

in
vo

lv
e

d
 i

n
 c

a
re

 o
f 

a
d

u
lt

s 

5
0

0
 Y

o
u

n
g

 C
a

re
rs

 k
n

o
w

n
 t

o
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

a
l 

A
d

u
lt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

T
e

a
m

s 
(r

e
co

rd
e

d
 c

a
se

s)
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

4
 

T
C

T
 Z

o
n

e
 T

e
a

m
s 

E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 s
ys

te
m

s 
fo

r 

id
e

n
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 t
a

ki
n

g
 o

n
 

ca
ri

n
g

 a
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt
 o

f 
h

o
sp

it
a

l 

a
d

m
is

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 i
n

vo
lv

e
m

e
n

t 

in
 d

is
ch

a
rg

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

D
e

ve
lo

p
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 

p
ro

to
co

ls
 w

it
h

 S
D

H
C

T
 f

o
r 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 

id
e

n
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
n

vo
lv

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
ca

re
rs

 

a
t 

T
o

rb
a

y 
H

o
sp

it
a

l 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 

T
C

T
 /

 S
D

H
C

T
  

T
a

rg
e

t 
su

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
ca

re
rs

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 

th
e

 m
o

st
 d

e
p

ri
ve

d
 w

a
rd

s 
in

 

T
o

rb
a

y 

A
 p

ro
je

ct
 f

o
r 

lo
ca

l 
ca

re
r 

su
p

p
o

rt
 i

n
 t

h
e

 

H
e

le
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
w

il
l 
b

e
 e

st
a

b
li

sh
e

d
 w

it
h

 

N
H

S
 c

a
re

rs
 H

e
a

lt
h

 t
ra

in
e

rs
 a

s 
a

 p
il

o
t 

fo
r 

lo
ca

l 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

  

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

4
 

T
C

T
 /

 T
o

rb
a

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 

    
 

Page 16



 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

d
v

ic
e

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 t
o

 a
ll

 C
a

re
rs

 

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

T
a

rg
e

t/
S

e
rv

ic
e

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 
T

im
e

sc
a

le
 

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 

C
a

re
rs

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 W
o

rk
e

rs
 i
n

 a
ll
 G

P
 

S
u

rg
e

ri
e

s 

M
a

in
ta

in
 m

in
im

u
m

 1
 d

a
y 

p
e

r 
w

e
e

k 
p

e
r 

p
ra

ct
ic

e
. 

R
e

p
e

a
t 

fo
rm

a
l 
e

va
lu

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

C
S
W

 p
o

st
s 

d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

3
 -

 1
4

 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

4
 

G
P

 P
ra

ct
ic

e
s 

/ 
T

C
T

 

S
ig

n
p

o
st

 C
a

re
rs

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
  

T
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

 /
 f

a
ce

 t
o

 f
a

ce
 s

e
rv

ic
e

  

a
va

il
a

b
le

  
M

o
n

 –
 F

ri
d

a
y 

re
sp

o
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 

3
0

0
 e

n
q

u
ir

ie
s 

p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
. 

R
e

vi
e

w
 n

e
e

d
 

fo
r 

w
e

e
ke

n
d

 /
 e

ve
n

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 

M
o

n
th

ly
 r

e
tu

rn
s 

o
n

 

a
ct

iv
it

y 

 

D
is

a
b

il
it

y 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

 

T
o

rb
a

y 
C

a
re

rs
 R

e
g

is
te

r,
 C

a
re

rs
 

E
m

e
rg

e
n

cy
 C

a
rd

 a
n

d
 C

a
re

rs
 

D
is

co
u

n
t 

S
ch

e
m

e
 

M
in

im
u

m
 1

5
%

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 p
e

r 
a

n
n

u
m

 i
n

 

ca
re

rs
 b

e
n

e
fi

tt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 R
e

g
is

te
r 

se
rv

ic
e

s 

=
 3

7
5

 n
e

w
 a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
s 

p
.a

. 
(B

a
se

li
n

e
 

1
/4

/1
1

) 

 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 

T
C

T
/C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
A

la
rm

s 

E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 C
a

re
rs

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

a
d

vi
ce

 i
n

 H
o

sp
it

a
l 

se
tt

in
g
s 

a
n

d
 

li
n

ki
n

g
 c

a
re

rs
 i

n
to

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

su
p

p
o

rt
 

•
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
e

va
lu

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

ca
re

r 

su
p

p
o

rt
 a

t 
T

o
rb

a
y 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

H
o

sp
it

a
l 

a
n

d
 a

p
p

ly
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
. 

 

•
 

C
a

re
r 

A
d

vi
ce

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

H
o
sp

it
al

s 
P

ai
g
n
to

n
 

an
d
 B

ri
x

h
am

 (
1
 s

es
si

o
n
 p

er
 w

ee
k
 

p
er

 H
o
sp

it
al

) 

Ju
n

e
 2

0
1

2
 

  O
n

g
o

in
g
 

T
C

T
/S

D
H

C
T

 

  S
ig

n
p

o
st

s 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

Page 17



C
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
d

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 –

 l
e

a
fl

e
ts

, 
b

o
o

kl
e

ts
 

a
n

d
 n

e
w

sl
e

tt
e

rs
 

•
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y 
S
ig

n
p

o
st

s 
C

a
re

rs
 

N
e

w
sl

e
tt

e
r 

(3
5

0
0

 p
ri

n
t 

ru
n

) 

•
 

M
a

in
ta

in
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 C

a
re

rs
 l

e
a

fl
e

t 

ra
ck

s 
in

 G
P

 s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s,
 C

o
n

n
e

ct
io

n
s 

o
ff

ic
e

s 
a

n
d

 c
li

n
ic

s 
e

tc
 

•
 

A
va

il
a

b
il

it
y 

o
f 

u
p

d
a

te
d

 c
o

re
 C

a
re

rs
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 b

o
o

kl
e

ts
: 

C
a

re
rs

 i
n

 

T
o

rb
a

y,
 D

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 C
a

re
r 

P
a

th
w

a
ys

 

w
it

h
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
re

vi
e

w
 o

f 
co

n
te

n
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y 

O
n

g
o

in
g
 

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

u
p

d
a

te
s 

T
C

T
 

D
is

a
b

il
it

y 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

 T
C

T
 /

 D
is

a
b

il
it

y 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

M
a

in
ta

in
 e

xi
st

in
g
 C

a
re

r 
E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

a
n

d
 d

e
ve

lo
p

 n
e

w
 

co
u

rs
e

s 
in

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

le
a

rn
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s 

•
 

6
 m

o
n

th
ly

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 p

u
b

li
sh

e
d

 

a
n

d
 d

e
li

ve
re

d
 

•
 

R
e

vi
e

w
 d

e
li

ve
ry

 o
f 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

w
it

h
 

ke
y 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 

A
p

ri
l 
1

3
 

T
C

T
 

   

In
v

o
lv

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

a
re

rs
 i

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

, 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
T

a
rg

e
t/

S
e

rv
ic

e
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

T
im

e
sc

a
le

 
R

e
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 

D
e

ve
lo

p
 a

 r
e

so
u

rc
e

  
o

f 
C

a
re

rs
 a

n
d

 

fo
rm

e
r 

C
a

re
rs

 i
n

vo
lv

e
d

 i
n

 

vo
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 s

e
ss

io
n

a
l 

w
o

rk
 

 

1
0

0
 C

a
re

rs
 /

 f
o

rm
e

r 
ca

re
rs

 p
ro

vi
d

in
g

 

vo
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

 
T

C
T

 /
 C

ro
ss

ro
a

d
s 

C
a

re
 S

W
 

M
a

in
ta

in
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

T
o

rb
a

y 

C
a

re
rs

 F
o

ru
m

 
w
w
w
.t
o
rb
a
y
c
a
re
rs
fo
ru
m
.c
o
.u
k
 

2
5

0
 n

e
w

 C
a

re
rs

 j
o

in
 t

h
e

 F
o

ru
m

 p
e

r 
ye

a
r 

1
0

/2
0

1
2

 -
 5

0
0

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 

1
0

/2
0

1
3

 -
 7

5
0

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 

T
o

rb
a

y 
C

a
re

rs
 F

o
ru

m
  

M
a

in
ta

in
 a

 p
o

o
l 
o

f 
tr

a
in

e
d

 C
a

re
r 

E
va

lu
a

to
rs

 t
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i
n

 

se
rv

ic
e

 e
va

lu
a

ti
o

n
s 

–
 t

ra
in

 

re
p

la
ce

m
e

n
t 

e
va

lu
a

to
rs

 

M
in

im
u

m
 1

5
 C

a
re

r 
E

va
lu

a
to

rs
 t

ra
in

e
d

 i
n

 

E
va

lu
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
u

rv
e

y 
te

ch
n

iq
u

e
s 

a
n

d
 

in
vo

lv
e

d
 i

n
 a

t 
le

a
st

 2
 e

va
lu

a
ti

o
n

s 
p

e
r 

ye
a

r 

R
e

vi
e

w
 a

n
n

u
a

ll
y 

T
C

T
 

Page 18



S
ys

te
m

a
ti

ca
ll
y 

e
va

lu
a

te
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 

o
f 

su
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
fo

r 
C

a
re

rs
 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y 

M
in

im
u

m
 o

f 
2

 c
a

re
rs

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

p
e

r 
ye

a
r 

e
va

lu
a

te
d

 u
si

n
g
 a

p
p

ro
ve

d
 r

e
se

a
rc

h
 

m
e

th
o

d
s.

 R
e

su
lt

s 
p

u
b

li
sh

e
d

: 
 

2
0

1
2

-1
3

 

•
 

E
a

rl
y 

id
e

n
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

o
f 

ca
re

rs
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 

d
e

m
e

n
ti

a
 /

 m
e

m
o

ry
 p

ro
b

le
m

s 

•
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 A

d
u

lt
 C

a
re

rs
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

•
 

C
a

re
rs

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 i
n

 s
u

b
st

a
n

ce
 

m
is

u
se

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

•
 

C
a

re
rs

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 W
o

rk
e

rs
 i
n

 G
P

 

su
rg

e
ri

e
s 

W
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

b
e

n
ch

m
a

rk
 

a
va

il
a

b
le

, 
th

e
 T

o
rb

a
y 

se
rv

ic
e

 w
il

l 
b

e
 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 t

o
p

 q
u

a
rt

il
e

 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

2
0

1
2

 –
 

1
4

  

 P
u

b
li

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

e
va

lu
a

ti
o

n
s 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 

    P
u

b
li

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

e
va

lu
a

ti
o

n
s 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

4
 

T
C

T
  

In
cr

e
a

se
 t

h
e

 l
o

ca
l 
n

e
tw

o
rk

s 
o

f 

su
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

C
a

re
rs

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

su
p

p
o

rt
 g

ro
u

p
s,

 b
e

fr
ie

n
d

in
g

 

sc
h

e
m

e
s 

a
n

d
 s

e
lf

 h
e

lp
. 

 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 a
 r

e
vi

e
w

 o
f 

e
xi

st
in

g
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s 

o
f 

ca
re

r 
su

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 i

d
e

n
ti

fy
 g

a
p

s,
 a

n
d

 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

Ju
n

e
 2

0
1

3
 

 

A
ll

 z
o

n
e

s 
te

a
m

s 
in

 A
d

u
lt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

w
il

l 
h

a
ve

 t
o

 p
u

b
li
sh

 a
 l
o

ca
l 

ca
re

rs
 

st
ra

te
g

y,
 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 

m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
s 

fo
r 

ca
re

r 

in
vo

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

 

Z
o

n
e

 p
la

n
 c

o
n

su
lt

e
d

 o
n

 w
it

h
 l

o
ca

l 
ca

re
rs

 

/ 
ca

re
rs

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 p

u
b

li
sh

e
d

 f
o

r 

p
e

ri
o

d
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

3
 -

 1
4

 

P
u

b
li

ca
ti

o
n

 b
y 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 

Z
o

n
e

 T
e

a
m

 M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 /

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 O

P
M

H
 a

n
d

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 

D
is

a
b

il
it

y 

 
 

 
 

Page 19



A
v

a
il

a
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 C

a
re

rs
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

p
a

ck
a

g
e

s 
o

f 
su

p
p

o
rt

 

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

T
a

rg
e

t/
S

e
rv

ic
e

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 
T

im
e

sc
a

le
 

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 

D
e

ve
lo

p
 C

a
re

rs
 S

e
lf

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

a
ll
 c

a
re

rs
 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 s

e
lf

- 

fu
n

d
e

rs
 

•
 

E
n

su
re

 a
va

il
a

b
il
it

y 
o

f 
ca

re
r 

fr
ie

n
d

ly
 s

e
lf

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

to
o

l 
to

 

vo
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
ct

o
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 c
a

re
rs

. 
U

se
 o

f 
b

y 

1
5

0
 c

a
re

rs
 e

va
lu

a
te

d
 

•
 

P
ro

m
o

te
 u

se
 o

f 
‘M

e
 a

n
d

 M
y 

Li
fe

 

B
o

o
k’

 (
h

a
rd

 c
o

p
y 

a
n

d
 d

ig
it

a
l 

ve
rs

io
n

) 
5

0
 b

o
o

ks
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 p
e

r 

a
n

n
u

m
  

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

2
 

  R
e

vi
e

w
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

3
 a

n
d

 

a
n

n
u

a
ll

y 
 

 

T
C

T
 

P
ro

vi
d

e
 i

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

e
n

a
b

li
n

g
 

a
n

d
 b

ro
ke

ra
g

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 

C
a

re
rs

 (
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 s

e
lf

-f
u

n
d

e
rs

) 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 i

n
 p

la
ce

 f
ro

m
 ‘

T
h

ir
d

 s
e

ct
o

r’
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 c
o

m
p

e
ti

ti
ve

 t
e

n
d

e
r 

N
o

ve
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

e
d

 b
y 

T
C

T
 

D
e

ve
lo

p
 a

n
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 C

a
re

rs
 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

th
a

t 
in

co
rp

o
ra

te
s 

th
e

 

p
h

ys
ic

a
l 

a
n

d
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

C
a

re
rs

 

•
 

E
va

lu
a

te
 d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 p
il

o
t 

in
 G

P
 

su
rg

e
ri

e
s 

 

•
 

P
ro

je
ct

 p
la

n
 t

o
 ‘

te
st

’ 
m

o
d

e
l 

o
f 

e
n

h
a

n
ce

d
 C

a
re

r 
A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 

a
p

p
ly

 a
cr

o
ss

 a
d

u
lt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

4
 

 

C
a

re
rs

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

T
e

a
m

 

M
a

in
ta

in
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 f

o
r 

co
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 C
a

re
rs

 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(A
S

A
) 

A
g

re
e

d
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t 
w

it
h

 T
o

rb
a

y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

Z
o

n
e

 T
e

a
m

s 

Page 20



R
e

vi
e

w
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
n

e
ss

 o
f 

C
a

re
rs

 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
w

o
rk

in
g
 c

a
re

rs
 

Id
e

n
ti

fy
 s

p
e

ci
fi

c 
a

re
a

s 
fo

r 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

t 

e
.g

. 
a

cc
e

ss
, 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
 p

la
n

 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 

T
C

T
 

E
xt

e
n

d
 u

se
 o

f 
‘o

n
e

 o
ff

’ 
d

ir
e

ct
 

p
a

ym
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
C

a
re

rs
 t

o
 p

u
rc

h
a

se
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
‘b

re
a

ks
’ 

 

5
0

0
 c

a
re

rs
 w

il
l 

re
ce

iv
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

n
u

a
ll

y 

fr
o

m
 2

0
1

3
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
ta

rg
e

t 
T

C
T

  

  

 
 

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
 ‘

w
h

o
le

 f
a

m
il

y
’ 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 C
a

re
rs

 
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
T

a
rg

e
t/

S
e

rv
ic

e
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

T
im

e
sc

a
le

 
R

e
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
M

e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

 o
f 

U
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
Y

o
u

n
g
 C

a
re

rs
 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
 

 

P
u

b
li

sh
 I

n
te

r-
a

g
e

n
cy

 Y
o

u
n

g
 C

a
re

rs
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

2
 

T
C

T
/C

h
il

d
re

n
s 

B
o

a
rd

 

D
e

ve
lo

p
 t

h
e

 Y
o

u
n

g
 A

d
u

lt
 C

a
re

rs
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 (

1
6

 –
 2

5
) 

 

1
4

0
 Y

A
C

’s
 r

e
ce

iv
in

g
 a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 

 

T
C

T
/C

h
il

d
re

n
s 

B
o

a
rd

 

D
e

ve
lo

p
 a

 C
a

re
rs

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

fo
r 

su
b

st
a

n
ce

 m
is

u
se

 

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

 p
il
o

t 
fo

r 
se

rv
ic

e
 d

e
li

ve
ry

 

a
n

d
 e

va
lu

a
te

. 
 

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
D

A
T

/T
C

T
 C

a
re

rs
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s/
C

O
O

L 

R
e

co
ve

ry
 

E
va

lu
a

te
 t

h
e

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

n
e

ss
 o

f 

su
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 B

M
E

 c
a

re
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

ir
 

fa
m

il
ie

s 
a

n
d

 d
e

ve
lo

p
 a

n
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
. 

 

 

T
o

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 a
n

 e
xt

e
rn

a
l 

re
vi

e
w

 o
f 

th
e

 

n
e

e
d

s 
o

f 
th

is
 g

ro
u

p
 o

f 
T

o
rb

a
y 

ca
re

rs
 a

n
d

 

p
u

b
li

sh
 r

e
p

o
rt

  

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 

T
C

T
 /

 C
h

il
d

re
n

s 
B

o
a

rd
 

 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 'Measure Up' 2012 - 14: Torbay's Interagency Carers Strategy
	Measure Up 2012 to 14 Torbay Interagncy Carers Strategy App1 210212


